
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, April 6, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and in accordance with the Governor’s Executive 
Order N-29-20 (a copy of which is attached to this agenda), the Yucaipa Valley 

Water District will be conducting this meeting by teleconference only.  Public 
comments on matters listed on the agenda or on any matter within the District’s 

jurisdiction will be received during Public Comments, Agenda Item No. III. 
 

This meeting is available by calling (888) 475-4499 
Meeting ID: 676-950-731#  

 

Participate in the meeting online at 
https://zoom.us/j/676950731 

Passcode: 765589 
 

There will be no public physical location for attending this meeting in 
person.  The District’s Board meeting room will be  

closed to the public until further notice. 
 

If you are unable to participate by telephone, you may submit comments and/or 
questions in writing for the Board’s consideration by sending them to 

inquiry@yvwd.us.  Submit your written inquiry prior to the start of the meeting.  All 
public comments received prior to the start of the meeting will be provided to the 

Board and may be read into the record or compiled as part of the record. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may briefly address the Board of Directors on 
matters within its jurisdiction or on any matter listed on this agenda.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 1 of 121

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/
https://zoom.us/j/676950731
mailto:inquiry@yvwd.us


 
Page 2 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the 
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.   

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting - March 30, 2021 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Overview of the Report to the California Legislature on the 2012-2016 Drought [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-065 - Page 17 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff Presentation - No recommendation at this time. 

B. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-19 Authorizing the Release of Unclaimed Monies to 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District Pursuant to Government Code Section 50055 [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-066 - Page 91 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-19. 

C. Update on the Yucaipa Valley Water District Water Wise Landscape Contest [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-067 - Page 96 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize District staff to implement 
the 2021 Water Wise Landscape Contest for a cost not to exceed $3,100 in prizes. 

D. Consideration of Creating an Opt-Out Program for the Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) 
Network [Director Memorandum No. 21-068 - Page 98 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-20. 

E. Consideration to Authorize the Conversion to a New Customer Utility Billing Portal and 
Payment Platform [Director Memorandum No. 21-069 - Page 102 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract with Invoice Cloud. 

F. Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Replacement of Drinking Water Reservoirs R-17.1.1 and 
R-17.1.2, Yucaipa [Director Memorandum No. 21-070 - Page 104 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the District staff to solicit bids 
for the replacement of the drinking water reservoirs R-17.1.1 and R-17.1.2. 

G. Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-071 - Page 109 of 121] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
solicit bids for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. April 13, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

B. April 20, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

C. April 27, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

D. May 4, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

E. May 11, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

F. May 18, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

G. May 25, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

H. June 1, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Teleconference Only 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 2 of 121



 
Page 3 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 3 of 121



 
Page 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 4 of 121



 
Page 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 5 of 121



 
Page 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 6 of 121



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 7 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES OF A BOARD MEETING - TELECONFERENCE 
 

March 30, 2021 at 4:00 pm 
 

 
Due to the spread of COVID-19 and in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
(a copy of which was attached to the meeting agenda), the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
conducted this meeting by teleconference. 
 
The meeting was available to the public by calling (888) 475-4499 using meeting identification 
number 676-950-731 and live presentation material was available at https://zoom.us/j/676950731 
using passcode 765589. 
 

CALL TO ORDER The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by President Chris Mann 
at 4:00 p.m. 
 

ROLL CALL The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director Lonni 
Granlund, Director Chris Mann, Director Joyce McIntire, and 
Director Dennis Miller present.  

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Lonni Granlund, Vice President  
Jay Bogh, Director  
Joyce McIntire, Director 
Dennis Miller, Director 

Wade Allsup, Information Systems Specialist 
Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 
Jeremy Costello, Public Works Supervisor 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Chelsie Fogus, Administrative Assistant I 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Dustin Hochreiter, Senior Engineering Technician 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Tim Mackamul, Operations Manager 
Steven Molina, Public Works Supervisor 
Matt Porras, Implementation Manager 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Supervisor 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 None  David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Wynona Duvall, City of Calimesa 

Ronica Hochreiter, Customer 
Logan Largent, Ortega Strategies Group 
Cindy McCuistion, Customer 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 8 of 121

https://zoom.us/j/676950731


Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 7 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None.  

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Joyce McIntire moved to approve the consent calendar 
and Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 

A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting - March 16, 2021 

 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes 
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

B 
 

General Manager Jospeh Zoba provided information about the 
following items: 

• The U.S. Drought Monitors website is a useful tool for 
monitoring drought conditions in California and the United 
States.  The District staff will continue to monitor the 
existing conditions and provide additional information in 
the future. 

• The Department of Water Resources reduced the 
allocation of water from the State Water Project from 10% 
to 5%.  Last year, the 10-year rolling average of 
allocations for the State Water Project was 48%.  If this 
year remains at a 5% allocation, the 10-year reliability of 
the state water project will be reduced to 40.5%. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

DM 21-054 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
AND FILING A NOTICE 
OF COMPLETION FOR 
THE DRINKING WATER 
PIPELINE PROJECT IN 
WILDWOOD CANYON 
ROAD, YUCAIPA 
 

Senior Engineering Technician Dustin Hochreiter presented an 
overview of the Wildwood Canyon Pipeline Project.  Change Order 
No. 1 reduced the original contract amount by $16,833 from 
$477,477 to $460,644. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to execute Change Order No.1 and file the Notice of 
Completion. 
 
Director Dennis Miller seconded the motion. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 9 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 7 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-055 
 
ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
18 UPDATING THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
CONDITIONS FOR THE 
CALIMESA RECYCLED 
WATER CONVEYANCE 
PROJECT  

Water Resource Manager Jennifer Ares provided an overview of 
the updated environmental documentation for the Calimesa 
Recycled Water Conveyance Project.  
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board adopt Resolution 
No. 2021-18. 
 
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-056 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2018-
05 FOR PARCEL 4 OF 
PARCEL MAP NO. 
19822 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about 
Amendment No. 2 to Development Agreement No. 2018-05 for 
Parcel 4.  Mrs. Cindy McCuistion stated that escrow closed on the 
property and she looked forward to proceeding with her 
development plans. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board approve and authorize 
the Board President to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Development Agreement No. 2018-05. 
 
Director Chris Mann seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-057 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. 2021-

Administrative Assistant I Chelsie Fogus provided an overview 
Development Agreement No. 2021-07 for a development on 3rd 
street. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 10 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 7 

07 FOR SEWER 
SERVICE TO PARCEL 
MAP NO. 20232 
LOCATED AT 13498 3RD 
STREET, YUCAIPA 
(ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBER 0319-242-17) 

Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board authorize the Board 
President to execute Development Agreement No. 2021-07 
 
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-058 
 
RENTAL OF BEAR 
VALLEY MUTUAL 
WATER COMPANY 
STOCK SHARES FOR 
THE 2021 IRRIGATION 
SEASON 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the 
rental of Bear Valley Mutual stock for 2021. 
 
Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board approve the rental of 
Bear Valley Mutual Water Company stock for the 2021 Irrigation 
Season to Camp Morning Star and Larry Jacinto. 
 
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-059 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
USING CONTRACT 
SERVICES FROM CLA-
VAL FOR THE 
REHABILITATION OF 
VARIOUS PRESSURE 
REDUCING STATIONS 
 

Public Works Supervisor Steven Molina provided information 
about Cla-Val contractual services for maintenance of existing 
pressure reducing facilities. 
 
Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board approve the 
rehabilitation services from CLA-VAL for a sum not to exceed 
$46,958. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 11 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 7 

DM 21-060 
 
TERMINATION OF AN 
AWARD OF A 
CONTRACT FOR THE 
DEMOLITION OF 
STRUCTURES 
LOCATED ON SECOND 
STREET, YUCAIPA  
 

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras provided details about 
an unexecuted contract with the contractor selected to demolish 
structures on Second Street. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board terminate the previously 
awarded contract for the demolition of structures located at 
12806 2nd Street, 12816 2nd Street, 12834 2nd Street, and a 
storage structure on 2nd Street, Yucaipa. 
 
Director Dennis Miller seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-061 
 
REISSUANCE OF THE 
REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS FOR THE 
DEMOLITION OF 
STRUCTURES 
LOCATED AT 12806 2ND 
STREET, 12816 2ND 
STREET, 12834 2ND 
STREET, AND A 
STORAGE STRUCTURE 
ON 2ND STREET, 
YUCAIPA  

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras presented a revised 
Request for Proposals to obtain prices for the demolition of 
structures on Second Street. 
 
Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board authorize the 
reissuance of the demolition Request for Proposal. 
 
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-062 
 
PREPARATION OF A 
SCADA MASTER 
PLANNING DOCUMENT 
FOR THE WOCHHOLZ 
REGIONAL WATER 
RECYCLING FACILITY 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about the 
preparation of a SCADA Master Plan for the Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board authorize the 
General Manager execute a contract with GHD for Professional 
Services for a sum not to exceed $78,090. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 12 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 7 

Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-063 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 
AND NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION FOR THE 
CONTRACT WITH 
INLAND POTABLE 
SERVICES FOR THE 
INSPECTION AND 
CLEANING OF 
DISTRICT 
RESERVOIRS AND 
FACILITIES 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented information about the 
change order associated with sediment removal from various 
reservoir facilities. 
 
Director Jay Bogh moved that the Board authorize the General 
Manager to execute Change Order No. 3 for an increase of 
$28,611 and file the Notice of Completion for the third year and 
final year of the project. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

DM 21-064 
 
READOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
15 TO CORRECT THE 
TITLE OF THE 
RESOLUTION 

General Manager Joseph Zoba presented an administrative item 
to correct the title on Resolution No. 2021-15. 
 
Director Dennis Miller moved that the Board readopt Resolution 
No. 2021-15. 
 
Director Jay Bogh seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Dennis Miller - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 

Director Joyce McIntire reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Regional Water Alliance meeting held on March 24, 2021. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Chris Mann called attention to the announcements listed 
on the agenda.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.   
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 13 of 121



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 7 of 7 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
              Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 14 of 121



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 15 of 121



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 16 of 121



 

Director Memorandum 21-065 

Date:  April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of the Report to the California Legislature on the 2012-2016 
Drought 

Recommendation: Staff Presentation - No recommendation at this time. 

 
During the 2012-2016 drought, Governor Brown issued a series of executive orders together with 
new regulations put forth by the State Water Resources Control Board that created statewide 
solutions for dealing with the drought conditions.  The high-level directives mandated by the State 
superseded the advanced planning efforts and resources available at the local level in favor of a 
more comprehensive and uniform approach.   
 
On March 12, 2021, the California Natural Resources Agency released a report providing an 
overview of the 2012-16 drought together with recommendations for improving future statewide 
drought response.  While the District has been extremely proactive in developing alternative water 
resources, the following summary of recommendations might provide a unique insight for ideas 
of specific policies that the District might want to consider. 
 
At this time, the District staff suggests implementing regular community meetings to begin the 
discussion about potential drought conditions and impacts with the public.   
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS FOR  
IMPROVING DROUGHT RESPONSE 

 

Drinking Water 
 

• Implement the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Act of 2019, which provides up to 
$130 million a year for 10 years to assist water systems serving disadvantaged 
communities to provide safe drinking water.  
 

• State agencies should consider, as appropriate, actions such as connection 
moratoriums, system consolidation, and targeted technical or financial assistance to 
lessen the vulnerability of small water suppliers at risk of drought and water shortage.  
 

• In future droughts, longer lead time for potential financial assistance could be achieved 
by providing public notice at the end of a second dry winter of the intent to authorize 
State financial assistance in the event of a third dry winter, subject to the availability of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 17 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 2 of 74 

funding. Consider triggering immediate State financial assistance at the end of a second 
dry year for proactive measures to diagnose potential problems at small water systems. 
 

• Consider expanding the triennial sanitary surveys conducted by the Water Board to 
include the adequacy of a water system’s source.  
 

• Streamline State financial assistance to help local agencies and small water systems in 
emergency funding situations.  
 

• DWR and the Water Board should consider whether other methods of obtaining 
household water shortage information (dry wells) at a statewide scale are needed or 
feasible.  
 

• Legislation enacted in 2001 (SB 221 and SB 610) requires that local land use agencies 
approving new development projects of 500 units or more verify that water supplies are 
available to serve the proposed developments.  The drought resilience of developments 
approved under this 19-year-old law should be reviewed to gauge the effectiveness of 
the law and whether the 500-unit limit should be lowered, or other changes made, to 
prevent development without adequate water resources.  
 

Water Rights 
 

• The State should address temperature management in ecologically important streams 
prior to the next drought.  
 

• Water rights information should be made easily available to the public by rebuilding the 
State’s water rights database to include digital place of use, diversion, and case history 
information.  
 

• Water Board staff should improve the quality and timeliness of its water demand data.  
The Water Board should make that information readily available, along with other public 
water rights information.  Improved water use data - in particular, better temporal 
resolution and data quality assurance - are needed to support shortage analyses for 
water rights administration.  
 

• The Water Board should consider modifying the current requirement that diverters of 
10,000 acre-feet or more annually provide near real-time telemetered diversion data to 
apply to diversions of 500 acre-feet or more annually. 
 

• The Water Board should seek opportunities to streamline water rights enforcement 
processes for protection of senior water rights holders.  Earlier notices of likely 
unavailability of water under the diverter’s priority, combined with adoption of regulations 
setting curtailment requirements, may help.  
 

• Longer lead times are needed for effectively administering curtailments on the State’s 
major river systems, and for supporting water rights holders’ decisions to trigger 
temporary transfers or secure alternative supply sources.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 18 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 3 of 74 

• Dedicated State staff are needed to support ongoing drought planning and preparedness 
work, and these resources could be used during droughts to form the core of a larger 
drought response team.  
 

• The Water Board should continue long-term planning efforts, including efforts to develop 
and implement instream flow objectives for the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, 
including fish and wildlife, and include drought provisions in these planning processes to 
the extent possible. Water Supply  
 

• The Water Board should continue to pursue development of a more proactive 
temperature management plan for Reclamation’s Shasta Dam, to be developed early in 
the season before delivery decisions are made, in collaboration with Reclamation and in 
consultation with other resource agencies.  
 

• Continue and expand investments to improve subseasonal to seasonal precipitation 
forecasting ability.  Continue support for leading-edge remote sensing technologies for 
monitoring high-elevation snowpack to improve snowpack runoff forecasting.  
 

• Invest in improved information technology to enable State agencies to take advantage of 
available opportunities to use satellite-based remote sensing data to estimate 
evapotranspiration and water use.  
 

• Develop a tool for communicating the status of drought and statewide water supplies 
that can be easily understood by a general audience.  
 

• Prior to drought, water suppliers that have received State emergency assistance in 
multiple droughts should be a special focus for drought preparedness assistance or 
technical, managerial, and financial capacity review.  
 

• Regional water supply security in times of drought depends upon a diversified portfolio of 
supply sources.  These sources will vary by region, but water use efficiency, recycling, 
and stormwater capture all can play important roles in building drought resilience.  State 
policies and investments should continue to encourage such projects.  
 

Water Quality 
 

• Implement AB 834 and create an effective statewide system for monitoring, reporting, 
and tracking harmful algal blooms.  Statewide programs should focus on minimizing 
erosion, fertilizers, and other nutrient-rich nonpoint sources of pollution.  

 

Fish and Wildlife 
 

• Allocate additional staff resources for drought preparedness, environmental resilience 
actions, technical support, and communication. 
 

• Better account for species needs (including temperature) when making supply 
allocations at the start of a dry year.  
 

• Develop instream flow science and data and make that data available to the public so 
that local groups can better plan for and manage their own watersheds.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 19 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 4 of 74 

 

• Identify waterways where long-term State investment in monitoring infrastructure is 
warranted as agencies implement SB 19, the 2019 law that requires development of a 
plan to address gaps in the State’s stream gauge network.  
 

• Upgrade the water supply infrastructure at many CDFW-owned sites, including hatchery 
water treatment and water conservation improvements.  

 

Water Conservation  
 

• Imposing mandatory water use reductions during drought should balance statewide, 
“we’re-all-in-this-together” approaches with ways to account for local and regional 
differences in climate and water availability.  
 

• Meeting urban water needs during droughts should account for meeting water needs of 
appropriate outdoor landscapes. 
 

• The State should provide training on the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance to 
city and county planners to ensure compliance with these State standards.  
 

• The State should support efforts to explicitly exempt rebates related to water efficiency in 
the U.S. tax code and to permanently reinstate - and broaden to other water 
conservation measures - the California tax exemption for turf-removal rebates (AB 2434 
of 2014) that expired in 2019.  
 

• Agencies should be prepared for the unexpected and not assume that emergency 
conservation measures will be sufficient in the absence of an adequate factor of water 
supply safety. 
 

• The State should work with stakeholders and local and regional water suppliers to 
investigate how to design affordable water rates that incentivize emergency savings and 
prevent major revenue shortfalls during drought and also to understand the market 
penetration of various efficiency devices.  
 

Fire Protection 
 

• Large-scale forest restoration is needed in California because of decades of fire 
exclusion practices, a legacy of large tree removal, and a warming climate.  Proactive 
rather than reactive forest management allows for up-front formulation of multi-benefit 
projects.  The health of California’s headwater forests needs to be improved.  
 

• CAL FIRE should continue collaborating with the USFS in the dissemination of and 
response to annual tree mortality survey results, including funding research and 
monitoring.  
 

• Continue CAL FIRE’s urban forestry program tree survey as a valuable tool for 
assessing the impacts of drought and mandated urban water conservation programs on 
the state’s urban tree canopy. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 20 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 5 of 74 

• Review opportunities for encouraging greater emphasis on multi-hazard planning for 
urban suppliers, including potentially amending the Urban Water Management Planning 
Act.   
 

Emergency Human Assistance 
 

• Given the limited demand for it in the 2012–2016 drought, consider carefully how best to 
prioritize emergency housing assistance for drought response.  
 

Agriculture 
 

• More broadly disseminate to the agricultural community the regular updates of the joint 
DWR-Reclamation technical white paper explaining the process for obtaining approval to 
use SWP or CVP facilities for third-party water transfers.  
 

• DWR should work with the research community to develop experimental forecasts of 
seasonal conditions at the beginning of the wet season and at its halfway point and to 
communicate the implications of forecasted conditions for water transfers. 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 21 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 6 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 22 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 7 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 23 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 8 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 24 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 9 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 25 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 10 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 26 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 11 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 27 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 12 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 28 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 13 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 29 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 14 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 30 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 15 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 31 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 16 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 32 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 17 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 33 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 18 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 34 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 19 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 35 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 20 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 36 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 21 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 37 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 22 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 38 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 23 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 39 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 24 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 40 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 25 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 41 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 26 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 42 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 27 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 43 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 28 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 44 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 29 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 45 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 30 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 46 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 31 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 47 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 32 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 48 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 33 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 49 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 34 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 50 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 35 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 51 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 36 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 52 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 37 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 53 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 38 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 54 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 39 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 55 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 40 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 56 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 41 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 57 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 42 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 58 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 43 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 59 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 44 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 60 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 45 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 61 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 46 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 62 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 47 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 63 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 48 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 64 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 49 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 65 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 50 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 66 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 51 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 67 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 52 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 68 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 53 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 69 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 54 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 70 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 55 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 71 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 56 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 72 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 57 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 73 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 58 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 74 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 59 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 75 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 60 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 76 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 61 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 77 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 62 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 78 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 63 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 79 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 64 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 80 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 65 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 81 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 66 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 82 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 67 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 83 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 68 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 84 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 69 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 85 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 70 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 86 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 71 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 87 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 72 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 88 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 73 of 74 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 89 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-065  Page 74 of 74 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 90 of 121



 

 

 

Director Memorandum 21-066 

Date: April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-19 Authorizing the Release of 
Unclaimed Monies to the Yucaipa Valley Water District Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 50055 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-19. 

 
On October 3, 2017 the Board of Directors adopted the Unclaimed Funds Escheatment Policy 
(DM 17-090).  This policy requires District staff to annually transfer any monies from checks 
greater than one year old and less than $15 to the District as miscellaneous revenue.  In addition, 
any checks greater than three years old and more than $15 will be noticed in a local paper and if 
unclaimed after 60-days will also become miscellaneous revenue. 
 
On December 10, 2020, letters were mailed to each of the 6 individuals/companies for the checks 
mentioned above.  The letter stated a response was required, in person or by mail, to claim the 
funds (by March 29, 2021) and a new check would be issued.  No responses were received. 
 
On January 12, 2021, District staff presented a list of unclaimed funds to the Board of Directors, 
Director Memorandum 21-004.  There were 6 checks that were more than three years old and 
more than $15 each.  These checks totaled $387.19.   
 
On January 15, 2021 and January 22, 2021, the list of 6 outstanding checks was published in the 
Yucaipa News Mirror.  The publication stated the funds were required to be claimed, in person or 
by mail, by March 29, 2021, otherwise the funds would become property of the District.  No 
responses were received.   
 
The amount of unclaimed funds as of March 31, 2021, in the amount of $387.19, will be forfeited 
to the District as miscellaneous revenue.   
 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 91 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-066  Page 2 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 92 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-066  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 93 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-066  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 94 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-066  Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 95 of 121



 

Director Memorandum 21-067 

Date: April 6, 2021 

From: Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 

Subject: Update on the Yucaipa Valley Water District Water Wise Landscape Contest 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize District staff to implement the 2021 Water Wise 
Landscape Contest for a cost not to exceed $3,100 in prizes. 

 
On March 16, 2021 [Director 
Memorandum 21-051] the 
Board authorized District 
staff to the implement the 
YVWD Water Wise 
Landscape Contest.  A 
contest notice is currently 
being prepared to be mailed 
in early May with the utility 
bill.  Residents will be 
directed to the website 
where they can learn more 
about the program rules and 
enter the contest. 
 
There are three contest 
categories that residents 
may enter: 

 
• Drought-Tolerant: This contest is open to customers with drought tolerant landscaping.  

Winners will be selected based on their use of beautiful water-efficient plants, mulch, and drip 
irrigation. 
 

• Dual-Plumbed: This contest is open to all customers living in a dual-plumbed home.  To be 
eligible, contestants need to have attended the mandatory Recycled Water Site Supervisor 
Training.  Winners will be selected based on their compliance with recycled water guidelines 
and the overall aesthetics of their front or backyards.  
 

• Recycled Water Fill Station Hauler: This contest is open to customers who have attended 
the Fill Station Training and have hauled recycled water within the last 12 months.  Winners 
will be selected based on aesthetics or productivity of their yards or gardens.  

 
District staff proposes that three winners will be selected from each category.  In addition to these 
winners, the judge may each select 1-2 landscapes (a total of up to 8) to receive an “honorable 
mention.”   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 96 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-067  Page 2 of 2 

In addition to the residential landscape contest, staff proposes that the District recognize other 
recycled water users with trophies to recycled water users in each of the following categories: 
Agricultural User, Golf Course / Recreation User, Commercial User, Home Builder, Institutional / 
Municipal Government (county, city, school district).  
 

Landscape and User Awards 
First  
Place 

Second 
Place 

Third 
Place 

Drought-Tolerant Contest $300 $200 $100 

Dual-Plumbed Contest $300 $200 $100 

Recycled Water Fill Station Hauler $300 $200 $100 

Honorable Mention (up to eight) $50   

Recycled Water User Recognition 
(up to six) 

$150   

 
The total cost to the District is 
estimated to be $3,100 and will 
be paid for by the Water Fund, 
Conservation and Rebates [G/L 
Account # 02-506-54099]. 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 97 of 121



 

Director Memorandum 21-068 

Date: April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Creating an Opt-Out Program for the Automated Meter 
Infrastructure (AMI) Network 

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-20. 

 
In response to customer concerns 
about the installation of smart gas 
and electric meters, the California 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) 
created an op-out program that 
provides customers with an option to 
have their gas and electric meters 
read manually by the utilities.  The 
program implemented by the CPUC 
includes an initial set-up fee of $75 
and an ongoing monthly charge of 
$10 to opt out of the smart meter 
program.  
 
Unlike the smart meters used by gas 
and electric utilities, the District’s AMI 
network consists of an ultrasonic 
water meter plus a separate radio 
transmitter/receiver.  Customers that participate in the District’s opt out program would still receive 
the upgraded ultrasonic water meter, but the District staff would not install the transmitter/receiver 
on the meter box lid.  When the customer moves or requests to end their participation in the Opt-
Out Program, the District staff would then reinstall the transmitter/receiver on the meter box lid. 
 
The District staff drafted Resolution No. 2021-20 and an accompanying Opt-Out Application for 
your review, consideration, and discussion. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 98 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-068  Page 2 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
CREATING THE ABILITY FOR WATER CUSTOMERS TO OPT OUT OF THE 

AUTOMATED METER INFRASTRUCTURE FIXED NETWORK SYSTEM 
 
 
WHEREAS, on October 2, 2018, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District) was awarded a 
$1,000,000 WaterSMART: Water and Energy Efficiency grant from the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation for the installation of an Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) network; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District is nearly complete with the installation of AMI capable water meters on 
all drinking water and recycled water service connections; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has received concerns from customers regarding the radio transmitter 
device that is added to the new water meter for data transmission with the AMI network. 
 

____________________ 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District does hereby establish the following policy to be implemented by the General Manager as 
the Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Network Opt-Out Program. 
 
1. The Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Network Opt-Out Program (Opt-Out Program) 

is available to single family residential customer accounts with a 1” or smaller water meter. 
 

A. The Opt-Out Program is not available for multi-family accounts of accounts with 
more than one (1) equivalent dwelling unit (excluding fire flow capacity for a 1” 
meter). 

 
2. Customers wishing to participate in the Opt-Out Program will be required to complete and 

sign an application developed by the District. 
 

3. For qualified customers, the District staff will visit the property each month to manually 
read the water meter and manually enter the meter readings into the utility billing software 
program. 
 

4. An initial non-refundable charge of $47.46 will be collected at the time of application for 
the installation of the AMI network cable at the property when the opt-out provisions 
terminate as provided in Section 6.  The following fee calculation is subject to review and 
adjustments on a regular basis. 
 

A = AMI Network Installation and Vehicle Hours 0.5 hour (30 minutes) 
B = Administrative Labor Hours 0.15 hour (9 minutes) 
C = Administrative Clerk labor Rate $35.08/hour 
D = Utility Service Worker I labor Rate  $47.86/hour 
E = Meter Reading Vehicle Rate $27.52/hour 
F = Overhead Factor 10.5% 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 99 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-068  Page 3 of 4 

Fee Calculation Equation: 
 

[(𝐴 ∗ 𝐷) + (𝐴 ∗ 𝐸) + (𝐵 ∗ 𝐶)] ∗ (1 + 𝐸) = $47.46 
 
 

5. Customers will pay a non-refundable charge of $13.66 each month as calculated below.  
The following fee calculation is subject to review and adjustments on a regular basis. 
 

A = Meter Reading Labor and Vehicle Hours 0.15 hour (9 minutes) 
B = Administrative Labor Hours 0.03 hour (1.8 minutes) 
C = Administrative Clerk labor Rate $35.08/hour 
D = Utility Service Worker I labor Rate  $47.86/hour 
E = Meter Reading Vehicle Rate $27.52/hour 
F = Overhead Factor 10.5% 

 
Fee Calculation Equation: 
 

[(𝐴 ∗ 𝐷) + (𝐴 ∗ 𝐸) + (𝐵 ∗ 𝐶)] ∗ (1 + 𝐸) = $13.66 
 
 

6. The opt-out policy only applies to customers that execute an Automated Meter 
Infrastructure (AMI) Network Opt-Out Program Application.  Participation in the Opt-Out 
Program will terminate upon receipt of a written termination request from the customer or 
automatically when the service account is closed or a different individual / tenant registers 
for the service.  Upon termination, the District will install the AMI network cables and 
monthly charges will no longer be charged to the customer account. 
 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 6th day of April 2021. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 100 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-068  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 101 of 121



  

Director Memorandum 21-069 

Date: April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Consideration to Authorize the Conversion to a New Customer Utility Billing 
Portal and Payment Platform 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a contract 
with Invoice Cloud.  

 
On July 17, 2018, [Director Memorandum 18-107], the Board of Directors authorized the General 
Manager to execute a contract with Xpress Bill Pay, a payment processing vendor that worked 
closely with our Caselle financial software program.  Recently, Caselle has partnered with Invoice 
Cloud to provide an alternative online payment processing solution to their customers.   
 
The District staff is interested in pursuing a contract with Invoice Cloud since they offer a 
seamless, real-time integration with Caselle that is currently lacking with our current vendor which 
requires ongoing manual updates by District staff.  Other significant improvements that Invoice 
Cloud offers over our current provider are: 

• Full e-bill presentation that mirrors our current paper bill. 

• Improved Interactive Voice Response (IVR) - customized menu options for customers to 
quickly pay their bill without having to listen to all menu options.   

• Outbound IVR calls where customers can pay their bill from that phone call. 

• One-Time Payment Option – customers do not have to register to make a payment. 

• Pay by Text Option 

• Customers can set up text and calendar reminders to pay their bill. 

• Alternative payment options including Apple Pay, Google Pay, Venmo, PayPal 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 102 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-069  Page 2 of 2 

Although this conversion will not result in a cost decrease, District staff believes the customer 
benefits as well as the decrease in staff workload by eliminating manual tasks will ultimately result 
in lower costs and better utilization of District staff time.   

 
 

 
 
Financial Consideration 
 
There is no implementation fee for this conversion.  The anticipated increase in costs of $18,000 
annually will be offset by a decrease in staff time for manual processes as well as an increase in 
the customer experience and benefit.  This expense is included in the Water Fund, Utility Billing 
Expenses, [GL # 02-506-54013]. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 103 of 121



 

Director Memorandum 21-070 

Date: April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager  

Subject: Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Replacement of Drinking Water 
Reservoirs R-17.1.1 and R-17.1.2, Yucaipa 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the District staff to solicit bids for the 
replacement of the drinking water reservoirs R-17.1.1 and R-17.1.2. 

 
At the Board Meeting on September 22, 2020, 
District staff discussed the current condition of 
the R17.1 Drinking Water Storage facilities 
[Director Memorandum 20-137].  The westerly 
steel tank is identified as R-17.1.1 and the 
easterly steel tank as R-17.1.2.   
 
Currently, the R-17.1.2 tank is drained and out 
of service due to the severe damage to the 
structure.   Thus, the available storage of the site 
is approximately 210,000 gallons with the single 
tank in operation.  If both tanks were 
operational, the available storage would be 
420,000 gallons.  The replacement tanks will have a storage capacity of 640,000 gallons 
compared to the available 210,000 gallons of available storage today. 
 
Considering the age and condition of the existing facilities, both tanks should be replaced.  The 
design is complete and replacement of these structures will comply with current seismic 
requirements and increase the operational storage capacity for future demands and fire 
protection. 
 
Replacement of these two water storage tanks was discussed at the board meeting on October 
20, 2020 [Director Memorandum 20-155].  The environmental documentation was discussed at 
the Board Meeting on October 27, 2020 [Director Memorandum 20-159].  After the direction 
provided by the Board in October 2020, the District staff: 

 

• Completed the geotechnical investigation; 
 

• Completed the design of the site and associated pipeline; 
 

• Completed the distribution system permit amendment application with the State Water 
Resource Control Board Division of Drinking Water; 
 

• Coordinated future improvements with the adjacent property owner; and  
 

• Updated the project schedule. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 104 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-070  Page 2 of 5 

 
 
The strategic replacement of both drinking water tanks will include the phased demolition and 
construction of each tank individually to keep the site operational during construction.  The 
existing plastic (PVC) site piping will remain in place while the new ductile iron pipe (DIP) is 
constructed in a new alignment.  The new alignment of the site piping includes 750 linear feet of 
12” DIP located within the site access road.   
 

 
 
Financial Consideration: 
 
This project is estimated to cost between $1,600,000 - $1,750,000.  An engineer’s estimate will 
be included with the bid results at a future board meeting for your review and consideration.  The 
project will be paid with 33% Water Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [G/L Account #02-000-10311] 
and 67% Water Fund, FCC-Storage Reservoir funds [G/L Account #02-000-10413] as a result of 
current storage capacity of 210,000 gallons compared to future capacity of 640,000.  A resolution 
to transfer these funds to the project will be presented at a future board meeting.   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 105 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-070  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 106 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-070  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 107 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-070  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 108 of 121



 

Director Memorandum 21-071 

Date:  April 6, 2021 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance 
Project 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to solicit bids for the 
Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District is in 
the process of completing the design 
and bid package for the Calimesa 
Recycled Water Conveyance Project.  
The project will connect the existing 
recycled water mainline located within 
Avenue L in the City of Calimesa, to the 
existing facilities and customers in the 
southern end of the District’s service 
area.  
 
The proposed pipeline project involves 
approximately 11,865 ± linear feet of 24-
inch cement mortar lined ductile iron 
pipe, including various valves, 
appurtenances, and connections. 
 
The preliminary design drawings have 
been shared with the State Water 
Resources Control Board Division of 
Drinking Water, City of Calimesa, and 
South Mesa Mutual Water Company for 
review and comments.   
 
Once a contractor is selected, the 
contractor will apply for encroachment 
permits and submit traffic control plans 
to the City of Calimesa.  Recycled Water 
Site Permits are not required as this 
pipeline project is backbone 
infrastructure to connect existing 
recycled water facilities. 
 
The purpose of the item is to discuss the project and receive the authorization for District staff to 
solicit bids for the construction of the pipeline.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 109 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-071  Page 2 of 4 

 
Financial Impact 
 
This project will be funded as follows:  

• $2,892,500 from State Revolving Fund Loan,  

• $1,133,750 from Water Recycling Loan,  

• $1,758,750 Water Recycling Grant.   
 
The current interest rate for this project is anticipated to be 0.90% 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 110 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-071  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 111 of 121



Director Memorandum No. 21-071  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 112 of 121



 

 

Board Reports and Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 113 of 121



January 2021 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

72 full time employees 
 

FY 2020-21 Operating Budget: Water Division - $16,716,488 
 Sewer Division - $12.869,897 
 Recycled Water Division - $1,270,360 
 

Number of Services: 14,440 drinking water connections serving 19,355 units 
14,363 sewer connections serving 21,429 units 
695 recycled water connections serving 845 units 

 

Water System: 234 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,103 fire hydrants 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
3.376 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
222 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,639 sewer manholes 
7 sewer lift stations 
1.46 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 32 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.623 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 114 of 121



January 2021 
 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.579 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $2.131 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.435 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.668 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.760 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $16.00 per month 
1” Water Meter $26.72 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $53.28 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $44.21 per month 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 115 of 121



January 2021 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2019-20 $0.1425 per $100 $0.1775 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2020-21 $48,519,000 $8,692,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.270 per 1,000 gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.660 per 1,000 gallons.  A rate change 
of up to $0.857 per 1,000 gallons is pending future consideration by YVWD. 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 116 of 121



January 2021 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli are the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey 
sanitary wastewater or storm water. 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 117 of 121



January 2021 
 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals,  hormones,  and  other  organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 118 of 121



January 2021 
 

steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) -  Regional regulatory agency  that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 119 of 121

https://www.digalert.org/


January 2021 
 

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 120 of 121



January 2021 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - April 6, 2021 - Page 121 of 121


	Agenda
	Consent Calendar
	Staff Report
	Discussion Items
	DM 21-065 Overview of 2012-2016 Drought
	DM 21-066 Unclaimed Monies
	DM 21-067 2021 Water Wise Landscape Contest
	DM 21-068 AMI Opt Out Program
	DM 21-069 Invoice Cloud
	DM 21-070 Solicit Bids for R-17.1
	DM 21-071 Solicit Bids for Recycled Water Conveyance Pipeline

	Board Reports and Comments
	Facts About YVWD



